City of Clay, Alabama

Pre-Council Meeting Minutes
City Hall Meeting Room — 2441 Old Springville Road
January 27, 2026

CALL PRE-COUNCIL MEETING TO ORDER
Mayor Jane Anderton called the meeting to order at 6:06 p.m.
Mayor Jane Anderton introduced new City Clerk Toushi Arbitelle.

PRESENT

Mayor Jane Anderton

Council member Joseph “Jody” Harris
Council member Chris Nail

Council member Orletta Jackson-Rush, E.D.
Council member Nathan Thompson
Council member Carla Youngblood

CONTRACT FOR WEB DESIGN SERVICES

Mayor Anderton asked if everyone watched his video. Gave overview of contract with Sean Walsh for web design services. The City
will maintain ownership. Staff will be trained in using the software. It will be Al enabled. He will obtain a Clay business license, if
approved. He will give list of deliverables along with his timeframe of when work will be completed after staff has been trained.

APPOINTMENT FOR CITY ADMINISTRATOR/TREASURER

Council member Harris stated that three (3) more candidates were interviewed. He felt that Scott Collins was the best candidate.
Council member Youngblood agreed with Council member Harris. Council member Rush was not present for the interviews but
looked at their resumes. Council member Thompson questioned what had changed from two (2) weeks ago. Mayor Anderton replied
that two (2) other candidates were interviewed. Mayor Anderton emphasized that the previous candidate has local contacts as was
stressed at the League’s Advocacy Day. Council member Nail stated he was good.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION- COUNCIL APPOINTMENT
Council member Harris can no longer serve as the Chairman but will remain on the Commission as the Council’s representative.
FINANCE COMMITTEE CREATION

Council member Nail questioned the need. Mayor Anderton informed Council that one was established when the City was established.
Mayor Anderton says there is a need so that all finances do not have to be presented to the entire council. Meetings will be published
and open to the public. It will consist of: Council member Youngblood — chair, Council member Harris, Mayor Anderton, City
Administrator and City Clerk. Council member Youngblood says that a 3-5 analysis is needed to give an accurate standing of the
City’s finances.

DESIGNATE ADDITIONAL BANK SIGNATORY

This would add a 3™ person as an additional signatory. A need arose last week for a check for basketball gate money, and Council
member Rush was out of town.

LIST OF SURPLUS VEHICLES

Mayor Anderton had Public Works Supervisor Epps to create a list. Mayor Anderton would like to remove the two (2) buses listed.
Approved vehicles will go to the auction.

DE-ANNEXATION - 2565 SWEENEY HOLLOW ROAD
Council member Harris gave an overview of what Planning & Zoning Commission heard about the case. Their recommendation was
to approve the de-annexation. Council member Nail is concerned about setting a precedent in doing so.

Page 1 of 2
Pre-Council Meeting Minutes
January 27, 2026



ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned into the Council meeting at 6:30 p.m.

Attest:

Jane Anderton, Mayor Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk

Page 2 of 2
Pre-Council Meeting Minutes
January 27, 2026



City of Clay, Alabama

Regular Council Meeting Minutes
City Hall Meeting Room — 2441 Old Springville Road
January 27, 2026

CALL COUNCIL MEETING TO ORDER
Mayor Jane Anderton called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.
ROLL CALL / INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

PRESENT

Mayor Jane Anderton

Council member Joseph “Jody” Harris
Council member Chris Nail

Council member Otletta Jackson-Rush, E.D.
Council member Nathan Thompson
Council member Carla Youngblood

INVOCATION
Council member Orletta Rush

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Mayor Jane Anderton

APPROVE COUNCIL MINUTES

Motion to approve Pre-Council and Regular Council Minutes from January 13, 2026, made by Council member Rush,
Seconded by Council member Harris. Voting Yea: Mayor Anderton, Council member Harris, Council member Nail,
Council  member  Rush, Council member Thompson and Council member  Youngblood.

APPROVE MEETING AGENDA

Motion to approve January 27, 2026, Meeting Agenda, made by Council member Rush, Seconded by Council member
Youngblood. Voting Yea: Mayor Anderton, Council member Harris, Council member Nail, Council member Rush,
Council member Thompson and Council member Youngblood.

APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA (Check Register)

Motion to approve January 27, 2026, Consent Agenda (Check Register), made by Council member Rush, Seconded by
Council member Harris. Voting Yea: Mayor Anderton, Council member Harris, Council member Nail, Council member
Rush, Council member Thompson and Council member Youngblood.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Mayor Anderton
Nothing additional from Pre-Council meeting

Council member Harris
Jetferson County Sheriff’s Office (Sgt. Graham) gave a status report.
Center Point Fire District (Chief Dahlen) gave a status report.

Council member Nail

Page 1 of 4
Regular Council Meeting Minutes
January 27, 2026



Announced the December 2025 /January 2026 grants.

Clay-Chalkville Principal, Dr. Eugene Dallas, addressed the Council and asked for funding for football championship
rings.

Council member Rush

Library Committee had their quarterly meeting eatlier and the next scheduled meeting is April 28, 2026, which
conflicts with ALM 2026 Convention. A new date will be set later.

Council member Thompson

Glad to see crowd at council meeting. Attended ALM Advocacy Day with Mayor Anderton and Council member
Harris. The Deerfoot Parkway Dollar General is progressing well. Submit ideas for DYS property to
dys@clayalabama.org.

Council member Youngblood

Met with auditor regarding the FY2024-2025 audit which is favorable and will be presented at the next council
meeting.

READING OF PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMPLAINTS, APPEALS, or COMMUNICATIONS

There was none.

PUBLIC HEARING

There was none.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

There was none.

APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA (Resolutions)

Motion to enter unanimous consent and approve Consent Agenda (Resolutions), made by Council member Rush,
Seconded by Council member Thompson. Voting Yea: Mayor Anderton, Council member Harris, Council member
Nail, Council member Rush, Council member Thompson and Council member Youngblood.

OLD BUSINESS
Resolution 2025-70: A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Enter into a contract for Web Design Services

Motion to approve Resolution 2025-70 amended to include obtaining a current City of Clay business license, made by
Council member Harris Seconded by Council member Rush. Voting Yea: Mayor Anderton, Council member Harris,
Council member Nail, Council member Rush, Council member Thompson and Council member Youngblood.

Resolution 2026-03: A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Appoint a City Administrator/ Treasurer

Mayor Anderton stated her appointment is Bradley Watson. Council member Harris made a motion to amend
Resolution 2026-03 to approve Scott Collins as the City Administrator/Treasurer, Seconded by Council member
Youngblood.

Motion to suspend the rules to allow discussion made by Council member Harris, seconded by Council member
Youngblood. Voting Yea: Mayor Anderton, Council member Harris, Council Nail, Council member Rush, Council
Thompson, Council member Youngblood.

Page 2 of 4
Regular Council Meeting Minutes
January 27, 2026



Motion to approve Resolution 2026-03 as amended for Scott Collins as City Administrator/Treasurer, made by Council
member Hartris Seconded by Council member Youngblood. Voting Yea: Council member Harris, Council member Nail
and Council member Youngblood. Voting Nay: Mayor Anderton. Abstain: Council member Rush, Council member
Thompson

NEW BUSINESS
Resolution 2026-06: A Resolution to Appoint a Council Representative to the Planning & Zoning Board

Motion to approve Resolution 2026-06 made by Council member Thompson, Seconded by Council member Nail.
Voting Yea: Mayor Anderton, Council member Harris, Council member Nail, Council member Rush, Council member
Thompson and Council member Youngblood.

Resolution 2026-07: A Resolution Declaring City Property as Surplus

Motion to approve Resolution 2026-07 with amended vehicle list made by Council member Youngblood, Seconded by
Council member Rush. Voting Yea: Mayor Anderton, Council member Harris, Council member Nail, Council member
Rush, Council member Thompson and Council member Youngblood.

Resolution 2026-08: A Resolution to Create a Finance Committee

Motion to approve Resolution 2026-08 made by Council member Rush, Seconded by Council member Nail. Voting
Yea: Mayor Anderton, Council member Harris, Council member Nail, Council member Rush and Council member
Youngblood. Voting Nay: Council member Thompson

Resolution 2026-09: A Resolution to Amend Resolution 2025-09

Motion to approve Resolution 2026-09 with amended vehicle list made by Council member Harris, Seconded by Council
member Rush. Voting Yea: Mayor Anderton, Council member Harris, Council member Nail, Council member Rush,
Council member Thompson and Council member Youngblood.

Resolution 2026-10: A Resolution to De-Annex 2565 Sweeney Hollow Road (TPID 12-00-08-1-000-018.000)

Motion to approve Resolution 2026-10 Council member Rush, Seconded by Council member Nail for discussion.

Motion to table Resolution 2026-10 until February 10, 2026, meeting made by Council member Nail, Seconded by
Council member Thompson. Voting Yea: Mayor Anderton, Council member Harris, Council member Nail, Council
member Rush, Council member Thompson and Council member Youngblood.

Resolution 2026-11: A Resolution to Allocate Matching Resources to Purchase Football Championship Rings

Motion to allocate resources ($30,000) along with matching funds from the Clay-Pinson Chamber of Commerce for
Clay-Chalkville High School Football Championship rings, made by Council member Harris, Seconded by Council
member Nail.

Motion to suspend the rules of procedure in order to consider a newly presented expense, which is not included on the
published agenda nor the FY2026 Budget, on the basis that it’s always been done by Council member Nail, Seconded
by Council member Harris. Voting Yea: Council member Harris, Council member Nail, Council member Rush, Council
member Thompson and Council member Youngblood. Voting Nay: Mayor Anderton

Page 3 of 4
Regular Council Meeting Minutes
January 27, 2026



First Reading: Motion to allocate resources ($30,000) along with matching funds from the Clay-Pinson Chamber of
Commerce for Clay-Chalkville High School Football Championship rings, made by Council member Harris, Seconded
by Council member Thompson for discussion.

Motion to end Unanimous Consent made by Council member Nail.

ADJOURNMENT

Motion to adjourn made by Council member Harris, Seconded by Council member Thompson. Voting Yea: Mayor
Anderton, Council member Harris, Council member Nail, Council member Rush, Council member Thompson and
Council member Youngblood.

The meeting adjourned at 7:27 p.m.

The next Pre-Council Meeting will be held on Tuesday, February 24th, 2026, at 6:00 p.m. at City Hall followed by the City
Council meeting at 6:30 p.m.

Attest:

Jane Anderton, Mayor Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk

Page 4 of 4
Regular Council Meeting Minutes
January 27, 2026



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA

PRE-COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA
City Hall Meeting Room - 2441 Old Springville Road
February 10, 2026 @ 6:00 PM

As a matter of convenience, members of the public are invited to listen and
observe in public meetings by YouTube video. Presenters and others
interested in a particular matter for discussion are encouraged to attend
the meeting in-person. The City is not responsible for technical issues that
may occur that interfere with the video. The City Council, at its sole
discretion, may proceed with its in-person business meeting regardless of
whether virtual attendees can hear and/or observe the proceedings. To
access the YouTube video, go to www.YouTube.com and search cityofclay
in the search bar. Click on the City of Clay logo and then click on “Live” to
view the meeting.

1. Accept the FY2024-2025 City Audit

2. Confirm Report of Costs and Creat a Demo Lien for 5975 Shane Circle (TPID# 09-00-34-1-000-
113.000)

3. Establish the City of Clay Parks & Recreation Advisory Board and Approving its Bylaws
4. Change the April 28, 2026 Council Meeting Date

5. Discuss the Carnival/Fair during Pickleball Tournament

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, those requiring accommodation for Council
meetings should notify the City Clerk’s Office at least 24 hours prior to the meeting at 205-680-1223.

Page 1 of 1
Regular Council Meeting Agenda
February 10, 2026



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA
City Hall Meeting Room - 2441 Old Springville Road
February 10, 2026 @ 6:30 PM

As a matter of convenience, members of the public are invited to listen and
observe in public meetings by YouTube video. Presenters and others
interested in a particular matter for discussion are encouraged to attend
the meeting in-person. The City is not responsible for technical issues that
may occur that interfere with the video. The City Council, at its sole
discretion, may proceed with its in-person business meeting regardless of
whether virtual attendees can hear and/or observe the proceedings. To
access the YouTube video, go to www.YouTube.com and search cityofclay
in the search bar. Click on the City of Clay logo and then click on “Live” to
view the meeting.

CALL TO ORDER
INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE / ROLL CALL
APPROVE COUNCIL MINUTES

1. Pre-Council and Council Minutes from January 28, 2026
APPROVE AGENDAS

2. Meeting Agenda
3. Consent Agenda (Financial)
COMMITTEE REPORTS

Mayor Jane Anderton
Council member Joseph “Jody” Harris
Council member Chris Nail

Council member Orletta Jackson-Rush, Ed.D.

© N o 0 A

Council member Nathan Thompson
9.  Council member Carla Youngblood
READING OF PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMPLAINTS, APPEALS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

PUBLIC COMMENTS

ENTER UNANIMOUS CONSENT: CONSENT AGENDA
OLD BUSINESS:

Page 1 of 2
Regular Council Meeting Agenda
February 10, 2026



10. Resolution 2026-10: A Resolution to De-Annex 2565 Sweeney Hollow Road (TPID# 12-00-08-
1-000-018.00

11. Resolution 2026-11: Request Withdrawn A-Reseolutionto-Adjust-the FY¥2025-2026 General
Eund Budact for 2025.6A Foctball Cl onchin Ri

NEW BUSINESS:
12. Resolution 2026-12: A Resolution to Accept the FY2024-2025 City Audit

13. Resolution 2026-13: A Resolution to Confirm the Report of Costs and Create a Demo Lien for
5975 Shane Circle (TPID# 09-00-34-1-000-113.000)

14. Resolution 2026-14: A Resolution to Establish the City of Clay Parks and Recreation Advisory
Board and Approving its Bylaws.

15. Resolution 2026-15: A Resolution to Change the April 28, 2026 Meeting Date
ADJOURNMENT

NEXT CITY COUNCIL MEETING — TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 24, 2026

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, those requiring accommodation for Council
meetings should notify the City Clerk’s Office at least 24 hours prior to the meeting at 205-680-1223.

Page 2 of 2
Regular Council Meeting Agenda
February 10, 2026



Resolution 2026-10

STATE OF ALABAMA
JEFFERSON COUNTY
CITY OF CLAY

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT THE PUBLIC GOOD REQUIRES A
REDUCTION OF THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF CLAY,
ATLLABAMA, PURSUANT TO §11-42-200, CODE OF ALLABAMA 1975;
AUTHORIZING THE DE-ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY
SUBJECT TO RECEIPT OF A LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND POST-DE-
ANNEXATION PLAT; PROVIDING FOR BUDGETARY AMENDMENT; AND
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY OFFICIALS TO IMPLEMENT THIS
RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, {11-42-200, Code of Alabama 1975, authorizes the governing body of a municipality, by
resolution, to reduce the corporate limits of the municipality when, in the judgment of the governing body,
the public health or public good requires such reduction; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Clay, Alabama (the “City Council”), has determined that the
public good requires the reduction of the corporate limits of the City through the de-annexation of certain
real property presently located within the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to condition the effectiveness of such de-annexation upon receipt of
an accurate legal description and a plat depicting the boundaries of the property following de-annexation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLAY,
ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Determination of Public Good. The City Council hereby determines and declares that the public

good requires a reduction of the corporate limits of the City of Clay, Alabama, within the meaning of §11-
42-200, Code of Alabama 1975.

Section 2. Authorization of De-Annexation. The corporate limits of the City of Clay, Alabama, are hereby
ordered to be reduced by the removal of certain parcel(s) of real property currently within the City, subject
to the City’s receipt, review, and acceptance of a complete and accurate legal description and a plat or survey
reflecting the property boundaries following de-annexation.

Section 3. Legal Description. Upon receipt and acceptance, the legal description of the property to be de-
annexed shall be attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit A.

Section 4. Statutory Procedure. The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to cause this
Resolution, together with the legal description of the property, to be published, certified, filed, and recorded
as required by §11-42-200, Code of Alabama 1975, including filing with the Judge of Probate of Jefferson
County, Alabama.



Section 5. Budget Amendment. The City Council hereby authorizes an amendment to the City’s adopted
budget to appropriate funds sufficient to pay all costs associated with the de-annexation authorized herein.

Section 6. Authority to Implement. The Mayor, City Clerk, Finance Director, City Attorney, and other
appropriate City officials and employees are hereby authorized to execute all documents and take all actions
necessary or convenient to carry out and implement this Resolution.

Section 7. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption, subject to
completion of the statutory requirements set forth in §11-42-200, Code of Alabama 1975.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED, this 27th Day of January 2026

Jane Anderton Toushi Arbitelle
Mayor City Clerk



Resolution 2026-10

I, the undersigned City Clerk of the City of Clay, Alabama, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true
copy of one Resolution lawfully passed and adopted by the City Council named therein, at a regular meeting of such
Council, and that such resolution is on file in the City Clerk’s Office.

I further certify that said Resolution was posted as required by State Law at the following locations: Clay City Hall;
Clay Post Office; Clay Seniors Center; and the Clay Public Library all being in the City of Clay.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the City on this

day of January 2026

Toushi Arbitelle
City Clerk



Resolution 2026-11

STATE OF ALABAMA
JEFFERSON COUNTY
CITY OF CLAY

A Resolution to Adjust the 2025-2026 General Fund Budget for the f Clay

WHEREAS, the Clay-Chalkville High School has won the 6A State High Sch
Championship for 2025; and

WHEREAS, the Clay-Chalkville High School is located in the Ci

WHEREAS this achievement has brought great positi ay-Chalkville High School

and the City of Clay; and

0 Ol state-wide audience; and

WHEREAS the Championship game was

WHEREAS this positive adv ent gr enhanced the reputation and perception of the City

of Clay; and ‘

WHEREAS the tunityto build on this positive recognition; and

WHEREAS, the City of Clay has a history of supporting championship teams through advertising;

and



WHEREAS, the Clay-Pinson Chamber of Commerce, as an organization, is tasked with providing,
organizing and producing a positive impression of the City of Clay; and

WHEREAS, the City of Clay has determined it is appropriate to provide each member of the 2025
Championship Team with an item of remembrance to refresh their memory, and

WHEREAS the family and friends of the Team members will also be reminded of t
experience and support of the City of Clay; and

WHEREAS the benefit of this positive advertisement cannot be overstat
WHEREAS, positive advertisement is for the benefit of th ze the

of Clay, and

WHEREAS it serves a public purpose and f3
the future.

tve advertising, now and in

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RE
the 2025-2026 General Bud
allocation by $30,000.00

of the 2025 Championshf m as a constant advertisement of a positive event in the City
of Clay, Alaba

ty Council of the City of Clay, Alabama that
asc the Chamber of Commerce General Support

paying the cost of individual rings for all members

, this 10th Day of February 2026

ane Anderton oushi Arbitelle
And Toushi Arbitell
Mayor City Clerk



Resolution 2026-zz

I further certify that said Resolution was posted 2
Hall; Clay Post Office; Clay Seniors Center; and

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto sd
day of February 2026

tixed the official seal of the City on this 10t

City Clerk



Resolution 2026-12

STATE OF ALABAMA
JEFFERSON COUNTY
CITY OF CLAY

A Resolution to Accept FY2024-2025 City Audit

WHEREAS, it is required by §11-43-85 of the Code of Alabama 1977 for the Mayor to present to the City
Council the annual audit report; and

WHEREAS, Cork Hill and Company, CPA has completed the FY2024-2025 Annual Audit Report, ending
September 30, 2025, at the direction of the Mayor; and

WHEREAS, said audit report is due to be presented and the auditors paid therefor.
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Clay that:

The Recitals above are true, correct and included herein as if fully set forth.

The attached FY2024-2025 annual City audit is hereby recognized and approved as presented.

The related expense for the subject audit shall be paid as determined by the Mayor.

The Mayor and staff shall have the full authority to do those things, perform those functions, make such
decisions, and to sign necessary documentation in order to carry out and fully complete the actions so
authorized herein.

L=

ADOPTED AND APPROVED, this 10th Day of February 2026

CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA

ATTEST:
JANE ANDERTON, MAYOR TOUSHI ARBITELLE, CITY CLERK
AYES: ABSENT:
NAYS: ABSTAIN:

In my capacity as City Clerk of the City of Clay, Alabama, I hereby certify that the above Resolution was duly adopted
by the City Council of the City of Clay, Alabama, at a regular meeting held on the 10t day of February 2026

City Clerk

Page 1 of 1



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2025



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
TABLE OF CONTENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

Independent AUItors’ REPOIT.......c..iiiiiiiiieiiii et eteeerte ettt e e e e sv e e st e e steeetbeesebeeesseeessseessseessseeenssens 1
Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government
AUTEING SEANAAPAS ...ttt ettt ettt st e st e s te st e st e e st et e esteessaesseesseesssesssesssesssesssennsennns 3

Management’s DiScusSion and ANALYSIS......cccuieivieeiiiiiiieiiieerieeteestee st e eseeeesereesreeebeeessseessseessseeessseessseas 5
General Purpose Financial Statements:
Government-Wide Financial Statements:
Statement Of NEt POSITION ......ccueiuiiiiiiiiiiieieee ettt 11
StateMENTt Of ACHIVITIES. ...eetietietieitieeite ettt ettt e sb e s bt e bt e bt e s bt e saeesaeesaeesateeabeenee 12
Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet - Governmental FUNds.........c.ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiii ettt 13
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position........ 14
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds.... 15

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of
Governmental Funds to the Statement of ACtiVIties........ccoeeiieiiiiiinienieee e 16

Notes to the FINancial StatemMeEnts..............ooooviviiiiiiiiiiiiii et 17
Required Supplemental Information

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund.............cccooviiiiiiiiciiiciiceeceeeee e 27



Cork, Hill & (:UIII])HII_\. | S P

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council of
The City of Clay, Alabama

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities of the City of Clay, Alabama (the City),
as of and for the year ended September 30, 2025, and the related Notes to the Financial Statements of the governmental activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
government activities, each major fund and the remaining fund information of the City of Clay, Alabama as of September 30,
2025 and the changes in its net position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City, and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the
financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Certified Public Accountants
31 Inverness Center Parkway, Suite 400
Birmingham, AL 35242

P.205.879.3292 F. 205.879.3295



Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors’ report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt
about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplemental Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion and Analysis
and Budgetary Comparison Schedules be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplemental information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the method of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 10, 2026, on our consideration
of the City of Clay, Alabama’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal controls over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness of the City of Clay, Alabama’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, in considering the City’s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Coonke, Kol & C"W LLC

Birmingham, Alabama
February 10, 2026



Cork, Hill & Company. L.1..C.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council
City of Clay, Alabama

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City
of Clay, Alabama, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2025, and the related Notes to the Financial Statements, which
collectively comprise the City of Clay, Alabama’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 10,
2026.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Clay, Alabama’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City of Clay, Alabama’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Clay,
Alabama’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Certified Public Accountants
31 Inverness Center Parkway, Suite 400
Birmingham, AL 35242

P.205.879.3292 F. 205.879.3295



Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Clay, Alabama’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

N C"W £L.LC

Birmingham, Alabama
February 10, 2026



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The City of Clay (the City)’s general purpose financial statements include Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A), Basic Financial Statements and Required Supplemental Information (RSI). The
MD&A, a component of RSI, introduces the basic financial statements and provides an analytical overview
of the City’s financial activities.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The City’s basic financial statements consist of the following elements:

Government-wide Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the City’s
overall financial condition. Changes in the City’s financial position may be measured over time by increases
and decreases in the Statement of Net Position. Information on how the City’s net position changed during
the fiscal year is presented in the Statement of Activities.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements focus on individual parts of the City, reporting the City’s operations in more
detail than the government-wide financial statements. The City has only governmental type funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to the full understanding of
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.



Scope

Required
financial
statements

Accounting
basis and
measurement
focus

Type of
asset/liability
information

Type of
inflow/outflow
information

CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

Major Features of the Basic Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide Proprietary Fiduciary
Financial Statements Governmental Funds Funds Funds
Entire City government Activities of the City that are not None None

Statement of Net Position,
Statement of Activities

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

All assets and liabilities,
both financial and capital,
and short-term and long-
term

All revenues and expenses

during the year, regardless

of when cash is received or
paid

proprietary or fiduciary

Balance Sheet,

Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances

Modified accrual accounting and
current financial resources focus

Only assets expected to be used
up and liabilities that come due
during the year or soon
thereafter; no capital assets
included

Revenues for which cash is
received during or soon after the
end of the year

Expenditures when goods or
services have been received and
payment is due during the year
or soon thereafter



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

Condensed Financial Information

Condensed Statement of Net Position

The City’s total net position increased between the years ended September 30, 2024 and September 30, 2025

by $2,346,692.

The City’s net position is composed of three components. The City has investments of $8,638,870 in capital
assets (buildings, vehicles, etc.) net of the debt associated with it. Restricted net position of $2,800,879 which
consists principally of cash restricted for specific uses by law and unrestricted net position of $8,821,124.

The following presents the City’s condensed Statement of Net Position as of September 30, 2025 and 2024,
derived from the government-wide Statement of Net Position shown on page 11 of this report.

Condensed Statement of Net Position (as adjusted)

Current and other assets
Capital assets

Total assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net Position

Invested in capital assets, net
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total fund balance (deficit)

Total Primary Total
Governmental Activities Government Change
2025 2024 2025 2024 Variance
$11,874,116  $10,926,776  $11,874,116  $10,926,776 $ 947,340
11,620,894 11,156,567 11,620,894 11,156,567 464,327
$23,495,010 $22,083,343 $23,495,010 $22,083,343 $1,411,667
$ 583,203 § 853,795 § 583,203 § 853,795 $(270,592)
2,650,934 3,315,367 2,650,934 3,315,367 (664,433)
3,234,137 4,169,162 3,234,137 4,169,162 (935,025)
8,638,870 8,155,988 8,638,870 8,155,988 482,882
2,800,879 2,529,228 2,800,879 2,529,228 271,651
8,821,124 7,228,965 8,821,124 7,228,965 1,592,159
20,260,873 17,914,181 20,260,873 17,914,181 2,346,692
$23,495,010 $22,083,343  $23,495,010 $22,083,343 $1,411,667




CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

Condensed Statement of Activities

The following presents the City’s condensed Statement of Activities for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2025 and September 30, 2024, as derived from the government-wide Statement of Activities shown on
page 12 of this report. The City’s total revenues increased by $30,551. Fifty percent of the City’s revenue
is from sales tax. The remainder is from charges for licenses, other taxes, services and donations. The City’s
program expenses increased $44,776. Total revenues exceeded all City expenses by $2,346,692.

Condensed Statement of Activities (as adjusted)

Total Primary Total
Governmental Activities Government Change
2025 2024 2025 2024 Variance
Revenues
Program revenues
Fines and fees $ 1,046 $ 3,153 % 1,046 $ 3,153 § (2,107
Operating grants and contributions 692,803 702,313 692,803 702,313 (9,510)
Charges for services 37,026 61,727 37,026 61,727 (24,701)
Total program revenues 730,875 767,193 730,875 767,193 (36,318)
General revenues and payments
Sales and use tax 3,271,720 3,239,294 3,271,720 3,239,294 32426
Ad valorem 572,887 616,567 572,887 616,567 (43,680)
Licenses and permits 1,084,673 1,078,315 1,084,673 1,078,315 6,358
Intergovernmental 430,053 433,547 430,053 433,547 (3,494)
Other taxes 294,701 293,736 294,701 293,736 965
Interest 208,546 7,449 208,546 7,449 201,097
Miscellaneous 7,930 134,733 7,930 134,733 (126,803)
Total general revenues and payments 5,870,510 5,803,641 5,870,510 5,803,641 66,369
Total revenues 6,601,385 6,570,834 6,601,385 6,570,834 30,551
Program expenditures
General government 2,493,359 2,127,324 2,493,359 2,127,324 366,035
Public safety 239,129 376,988 239,129 376,988 (137,859)
Parks and recreation 531,502 546,813 531,502 546,813 (15,311)
Streets and public works 567,123 672,265 567,123 672,265 (105,142)
Senior citizens 134,640 135,098 134,640 135,098 (458)
Library 162,921 213,263 162,921 213,263 (50,342)
Interest 126,019 138,166 126,019 138,166 (12,147)
Total program expenditures 4,254,693 4,209917 4,254,693 4,209,917 44,776
Change in net assets from activities 2,346,692 2,360,917 2,346,692 2,360917 (14,225)
Beginning net position 17,914,181 15,553,264 17,914,181 15,553,264 2,360,917
Ending net position $20,260,873 $17914,181 $20,260,873 $17914,181 $2,346,692

-8-



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

Program Expenses and Revenues for Governmental Activities

The following presents the net costs of governmental activities. Overall, program revenues were not
sufficient to cover program expenses for governmental activities. General revenues supported the net costs
of governmental activities.

Net Costs of Governmental Activities
for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2025

Less Program Program Revenues

Program Revenue, Grants as a Percentage of
Expenditures and Donations Net Program Costs  Program Expenditures

City Program 2025 2025 2025 2024 2025 2024

General government § 2493359 § 692,803 $1,800,556 $1,122,792 27.8% 33.0%
Public safety 239,129 1,046 238,083 678,621 0.4% 0.8%
Public works 567,123 - 567,123 705,283 0.0% 0.0%
Parks and recreation 531,502 33,838 497,664 443228 6.4% 9.3%
Library 162,921 3,188 159,733 208,947 2.0% 5.1%
Senior citizens 134,640 - 134,640 114,533 0.0% 0.0%
Interest 126,019 - 126,019 151,082 0.0% 0.0%
$ 4254693 $ 730,875 $3,523,818 $3,424,486 17.2% 18.2%

OVERALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BASIS ANALYSIS

The City’s assets exceed its liabilities by $11,650,817. This represents assets accumulated over the years
by having excess revenues.

FUND ANALYSIS

The general fund balance increased $971,820 during the year due to revenues exceeding expenditures. The
capital improvement fund balance increased $631,290 due to grant revenues and transfers from the general
fund and the gas tax funds increased $263,306 due to a larger amount of road repairs during the previous
year and investment income.

Governmental Funds

As of the close of the fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance
of $11,650,817. Ending fund balance is $1,866,416 more than the previous year balance.



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

CAPITAL ASSET AND LONG-TERM DEBT ACTIVITY

Capital Asset Activity

At September 30, 2025, the City reported $11,620,894 in capital assets. Refer to Note 5 of the financial
statements for additional information on capital assets.

Long-term Debt Activity

Long-term debt is made up of three general obligation warrants that were used to purchase the current City
Hall and for Cosby Lake improvements. The total amount of long-term debt at year end was $2,684,028.
Refer to Note 8 of the financial statements for additional information on long-term debt.

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

The City of Clay considered many factors in preparing the budget and presenting it to the Mayor and City
Council. Projected employment additions would be in the Public Works Department as well as Parks and
Recreation. The City continues to contract with the Jefferson County Sheriff’s Office for three deputies. That
number has proven sufficient for the protection of the Citizens as well as ordinance enforcement issues and
traffic control. All invoiced expenses continue to be paid within 14 days of receipt. Employees contribute
over $31,000 to their retirement plan annually, which is matched by the City. Total employee contributions
since implementation of this plan are greater than $350,000.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with

a general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives.
If you have any questions about this report or need additional information, contact:

Jane Anderton, Mayor Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk
2441 Old Springville Road 2441 Old Springyville Road
Clay, AL 35215 Clay, AL 35215

(205) 680-1223 (205) 680-1223

-10 -



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

ASSETS
Current Assets - Unrestricted
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Prepaids
Total Current Assets - Unrestricted

Current Assets - Restricted
Restricted cash
Total Current Assets - Restricted
Total Current Assets

Capital Assets:
Non-depreciable
Right-of-use lease asset, net of accumulated amortization
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation
Total Capital Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Right-of-use lease liability - current
Current maturities of long-term debt
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Right-of-use lease liability - noncurrent
General obligation bonds
Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets

Restricted net assets
Unrestricted net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Financial Statements

-11 -

Primary Government

Governmental
Activities Total

$ 8,591,276 $ 8,591,276
358,453 358,453
123,508 123,508
9,073,237 9,073,237
2,800,879 2,800,879
2,800,879 2,800,879
11,874,116 11,874,116
2,123,823 2,123,823
297,024 297,024
9,200,047 9,200,047
11,620,894 11,620,894
$ 23495010 $ 23,495,010
$ 252,113  $ 252,113
733 733
330,357 330,357
583,203 583,203
297,263 297,263
2,353,671 2,353,671
2,650,934 2,650,934
3,234,137 3,234,137
8,638,870 8,638,870
2,800,879 2,800,879
8,821,124 8.821,124
20,260,873 20,260,873
$ 23495010 $ 23495010




CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Charges Operating Capital
for Grants and  Grants and Government
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Total
Function/Program Activities
Primary Government:
Government Activities:
General government $ 2493359 $ - 3 692,803 $ - $ (1,800,556) $ (1,800,556)
Public safety 239,129 1,046 - - (238,083) (238,083)
Public works 567,123 - - - (567,123) (567,123)
Parks and recreation 531,502 33,838 - - (497,664) (497,664)
Library 162,921 3,188 - - (159,733) (159,733)
Senior citizens 134,640 - - - (134,640) (134,640)
Interest 126,019 - - - (126,019) (126,019)
Total governmental activities $§ 4,254,693 $ 38072 $ 692803 §$ - (3,523,818) (3,523,818)
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Sales tax 3,271,720 3,271,720
Ad valorem taxes 572,887 572,887
Other taxes 294,701 294,701
Licenses and permits 1,084,673 1,084,673
Intergovernmental 430,053 430,053
Interest 208,546 208,546
Miscellaneous 7,930 7,930
Total general revenues 5,870,510 5,870,510
Change in net position for current year 2,346,692 2,346,692
Net position, beginning of year 17,914,181 17,914,181
Net position, end of year $ 20260873 $ 20,260,873

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Financial Statements
-12-



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2025
Capital Non Total
Improvement Major Governme ntal
General Fund Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8591276 $ - 3 - $ 8591276
Restricted cash 31,374 1,718,568 1,050,937 2,800,879
Receivables
Taxes 308,125 - 27,352 335,477
Other 22,976 - - 22,976
Right-of-use lease asset 297,024 - - 297,024
Prepaid expenses 123,508 - - 123,508
Total assets $ 9374283 $ 1,718,568 $ 1,078,289 § 12,171,140
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ~ $ 221,227  $ - 3 1,100 $ 222,327
Right-of-use lease liability 297,996 - - 297,996
Total Labilities 519,223 - 1,100 520,323
Fund balance:
Non-spendable 123,508 - - 123,508
Restricted 31,374 1,718,568 1,077,189 2,827,131
Committed - - - -
Unassigned 8,700,178 - - 8,700,178
Total fund balance 8,855,060 1,718,568 1,077,189 11,650,817
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 9374283 $§ 1,718568 $ 1,078289 § 12,171,140

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Financial Statements

- 13-



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds $11,650,817

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
Net Assets are different because:

Capital Assets used in Governmental Activities are not current financial
resources and therefore, are not reported in the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet. 11,323,870

Long-Term Liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore, they are not reported in the Governmental Funds Balance
Sheet. (2,684,028)

Accrued compensated absences are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore they are not reported in the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet. (17,712)

Interest payable on long-term debt does not require current financial
resources. Therefore, interest payable is not reported as a liability in
the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.
(12,074)

Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 20,260,873

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Financial Statements
-14 -



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Parks and recreation
Library
Senior citizens
Interest
Other

Expenditures
Current operations:
General government
Public safety
Streets and sanitation
Parks and recreation
Library
Senior citizens
Total current operations

Capital outlays
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financial sources (uses):
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Excess / (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over / (under)
expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, ending

Capital Non Total
General Improve ment Major Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
3276499 $ - - $ 3276499
1,084,673 - - 1,084,673
905,811 97,128 289,923 1,292,862
30,688 - - 30,688
3,188 - - 3,188
10,969 - - 10,969
158,181 33,242 17,123 208,546
62,205 631,755 - 693,960
5,532,214 762,125 307,046 6,601,385
2,397,150 - - 2,397,150
77,617 108,333 - 185,950
428,014 - 56,240 484,254
180,062 - - 180,062
124,530 - - 124,530
111,844 - - 111,844
3,319,217 108,333 56,240 3,483,790
208,990 598,185 - 807,175
316,551 - - 316,551
127,453 - - 127,453
3,972,211 706,518 56,240 4,734,969
1,560,003 55,607 250,806 1,866,416
- 575,683 12,500 588,183
(588,183) - - (588,183)
(588,183) 575,683 12,500 -
971,820 631,290 263,306 1,866,416
7,883,240 1,087,278 813,883 9,784,401
8,855,060 $ 1,718,568 1,077,189 § 11,650,817

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Financial Statements

-15-



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 1,866,416

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the
government-wide statement of activities and changes in net assets, the cost
of theses assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense. This is the amount of capital assets recorded in the current period. 807,175

The issuance of debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds
while the repayment of debt principal consumes the governmental funds
current financial resources. Neither of these transactions has any effect on
the net assets in the statement of net position. These transactions are as
follows:
Repayment of notes and bond 316,551

Depreciation expense on capital assets is recorded in the government-wide
statement of activities and changes in net position, but it does not require the
use of current financial resources. Therefore, depreciation expense is not
recorded as an expenditure in governmental funds. (607,372)

Accrued compensated absences are recorded in the government-wide
statement of activities and changes in net position but do not require the use
of current financial resources. Therefore, the change in this liability is not
reflected as an expenditure in the governmental funds financial statements. (37,512)

Accrued interest expense is recorded in the government-wide statement
of activities and changes in net position but do not require the use of current
financial resources. Therefore, the change in this liability is not reflected as
any expenditure in the governmental funds financial statements. 1,434

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 2,346,692

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Financial Statements
-16 -



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Introduction

The financial statements of the City of Clay, Alabama (the City) are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The City’s reporting entity
applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements.

Reporting Entity

The City is a municipal corporation governed by an elected Mayor and City Council. As required by
generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the City and its component
units, entities for which the City is considered to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
based primarily upon operational and financial relationships with the City. There are no component units
for the 2025 year.

Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting

The accounting system is organized and operated on a fund basis. A fund is defined as a fiscal and
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on
specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions or
limitations.

The City’s governmental funds are classified into three generic fund types for financial statement
presentation purposes. The City’s governmental funds include the general, special revenue, and capital
projects funds.

Basis of Accounting - Government-wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display information about the City, the
primary government, as a whole.

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. This differs from the manner in which governmental fund financial statements
are prepared. Therefore, governmental fund financial statements include a reconciliation with brief
explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the statements
for governmental funds.

-17 -



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

The government-wide Statement of Activities presents a comparison between expenses and program
revenues for each governmental program. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a
service, program or department and are, therefore, clearly identifiable to a function. Program revenues
include charges paid by the recipients of the goods or services offered by the programs and grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a program. Revenues
which are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues. The comparison of program
revenues and expenses identifies the extent to which each program is self-financing or draws from the
general revenues of the City.

Net position should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on asset use are either externally
imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of
other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The net
position restricted for other purposes results from special revenue funds and the restrictions on their use.
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted
assets first then unrestricted assets as needed.

Fund Financial Statements

The focus of governmental fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type.
Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a
single column.

Governmental Funds

All governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting and the current
financial resources measurement focus. Under this basis revenues are recognized in the accounting period
in which they become measurable and available. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in
which the fund liability is incurred, if measurable.

Revenue Recognition

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrual basis, taxes and investment
earnings are deemed both measurable and available if collected within the current year or within 60 days

of year-end.

Other revenues, including licenses and permits, certain charges for services, and miscellaneous revenues,
are recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until received.

- 18 -



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
Expenditure Recognition

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Most expenditures are measurable and are recorded when the related
fund liability is incurred. However, principal and interest on general long-term debt which has not matured
are recognized when paid. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized
in the governmental funds.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets associated with a fund are determined
by its measurement focus. Fund accounting reports capital outlays as expenditures and does not recognize
capital assets and depreciation. Under the government-wide accrual basis of reporting, general capital assets
are long-lived assets of the City as a whole. When purchased, assets are capitalized. Infrastructure such as
streets, traffic signals and signs are capitalized. The valuation basis for general capital assets is historical
cost, or where historical cost is not available, estimated historical cost based on replacement cost.

Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value on the date donated.

Depreciation of capital assets is computed and recorded by the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives
of the various classes of depreciable capital assets are as follows: buildings - 40 to 60 years;
improvements/infrastructure - 5 to 40 years; equipment - 5 to 20 years.

Long-term Obligations

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported in the governmental activities on the Statement
of Net Position in the government-wide financial statements.

-19-



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
Net Position and Fund Balance
In the government-wide financial statements, net position is classified in the following categories:

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This category groups all capital assets, including infrastructure, into
one component of net position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt associated
with the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduces this category.

Restricted Net Position - This category presents the net position restricted by external parties (creditors,
grantors, contributors or laws and regulations).

Unrestricted - This represents the net position of the City that is not restricted for any project or other
purpose by third parties.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report aggregate amounts for five classifications of
fund balances based on the constraints imposed on the use of these resources. These categories are as
follows:

Non-spendable Fund Balance - includes amounts that are (a) not in spendable form, or (b) legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact. The not in spendable form criterion includes items that are
not expected to be converted to cash, for example: inventories and prepaid amounts.

Restricted Fund Balance - includes amounts that are restricted for specific purposes stipulated by external
resource providers, constitutionally or through enabling legislation. Restrictions may effectively be
changed or lifted only with the consent of resource providers.

Committed Fund Balance - includes amounts that can only be used for the specific purposes determined
by a formal action of the City’s highest level of decision-making authority, the City Council of the City of
Clay. Commitments may be changed or lifted only by the City taking the same formal action that imposed
the constraint originally (for example: resolution and ordinance).

-20 -



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Assigned Fund Balance - includes amounts intended to be used by the City for specific purposes that are
neither restricted nor committed. The City Council and Mayor have the authority to assign amounts to be
used for specific purposes. Assigned amounts also include all remaining amounts (except negative amounts)
in governmental funds, other than the General Fund, which are not classified as non-spendable, restricted
or committed.

Unassigned Fund Balance - the residual classification for the General Fund and to report negative fund
balances in the other governmental funds.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use externally
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources - committed, assigned, and unassigned - in order as
needed.

Budget Requirements, Accounting, and Reporting Requirements for all funds

Annual budgets are adopted for the City’s general fund. The budget is based on expected expenditures by
line item in total and not by department and by estimated resources by source.

Appropriation control (City Council appropriated budget) is by line item within the general fund. The
budget may be amended to transfer amounts among line items. The budget was not amended during the
year.

Accumulated Compensated Absences

The liability for compensated absences reported in the government-wide financial statements consists of
accumulated personal leave balances. The liability is based on personal leave accumulated at year-end by
those employees who are currently eligible to receive termination payments as well as other employees
who are expected to become eligible to receive such payments. Any personal leave not used by calendar
year end is forfeited by the employee.

For the year ended September 30, 2025, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated
Absences, which requires that liabilities for compensated absences be recognized for (1) leave that has not
been used and (2) leave that has been used but not yet paid in cash or settled through noncash means. The
City recognizes leave that has not been used if (a) the leave is attributable to services already rendered, (b)
the leave accumulates, and (c) the leave is more likely than not to be used for time off or otherwise paid in
cash or settled through noncash means. Leave is attributable to services already rendered when an employee
has performed the services required to earn the leave. Leave that accumulates is carried forward from the
reporting period in which it is earned to a future reporting period during which it may be used for time off
or otherwise paid or settled.

Use of Estimates
Preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

221 -



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

State of Alabama law requires all financial institutions accepting deposits of public funds to be a member of
the state SAFE program. The Security for Alabama Funds Enhancement (SAFE) program is a state-wide
collateral pool for all public funds administered through the Alabama Treasurers Office. All of the City’s funds
are collateralized by FDIC insurance and this collateral pool, therefore the City’s deposits are not subject to
custodial credit risk.

NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES

Capital Total
General Improvement Gas Tax Governmental Entity
Fund Fund Fund Funds Wide

Taxes:

Sales and use tax $ 287,098 $ - S - 8 287,098  $287,098
Intergovernmental

Property tax 10,224 - 10,224 10,224

Gasoline taxes 3,376 - 27,352 30,728 30,728

Other taxes 7427 - 7,427 7,427
Franchise fees 22976 - 22976 22976
Total receivables $ 331,101 $ - S 27352 $ 358,453 $358453

The gas tax fund receivables are restricted for road construction and repair. These receivables are included in
the entity-wide receivables.

NOTE 4 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

There were no interfund receivables or payables at September 30, 2025.

-2



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2025 was as follows:

Balance Balance
Sept. 30, 2024 Additions Retirements Sept. 30, 2025

Governmental Activities
Assets not being depreciated

Land $ 1,978236 $ -3 - 3 1,978,236
Construction in process 32,500 145,587 32,500 145,587
2,010,736 145,587 32,500 2,123,823

Other capital assets:

Buildings and land improvements 4,005,279 186,012 - 4,191,291
Equipment 1,095,930 281,112 162,172 1,214,870
Vehicles 495,683 25,270 84,161 436,792
Infrastructure 12,543,624 169,194 - 12,712,818
Right-of-use lease asset - 299,353 - 299,353
18,140,516 960,941 246,333 18,855,124

Accumulated depreciation 8,994,685 607,372 246,333 9,355,724
Accumulated amortization - 2,329 - 2,329
9,145,831 351,240 - 9,497,071

Net capital assets $ 11,156,567 $ 496827 §$§ 32,500 $ 11,620,894

Depreciation was charged to functions as follows:
Governmental activities

Parks $ 345,254
General 100,633
Streets and public works 78,768
Public safety 20,683
Seniors 24,866
Library 37,168
Total $ 607,372

NOTE 6 - ACCUMULATED COMPENSATED LEAVE
Employees accrue personal leave time in accordance with the City personnel policy. Such leave is

considered fully vested rights of the employees and is recorded as an obligation of the City at year end.
The cost of accumulated leave at September 30, 2025 was $17,712.

-23 .



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLAN

On May 1, 2015, the City established the City of Clay 457(B) Retirement Plan and the City of Clay 401(a)
Retirement Plan. These plans are defined contribution retirement plans, the 457(B) plan was set up to accept
employee contributions and the 401(a) plan accepts contributions from the City. The plans are administered
by PlanTech, LLP and funded through John Hancock. The plans cover all full-time employees. Employees
may make contributions to the 457(B) plan which are tax deferred or at their option, ROTH contributions
which are not tax deferred. All contributions into the 457(B) go into an account established for the benefit
of the person making the contribution. For the year 2025, contributions of each employee are limited to the
lesser of $22,500 or 100% of the participants compensation. Plan distributions are made at the employee’s
termination or at age 70-1/2, whichever is later. Employee accounts are adjusted daily for plan earnings and
are 100% vested when the contribution is made. The City makes matching monthly contributions equal to
7% of the employees’ compensation into the 401(a) plan. These contributions vest over a five-year period
in equal increments and are available for distribution in the same manner as the 457(B) plan. Contribution
rates for both plans are established and may be amended only by the City Council of the City of Clay.
Employee contributions for the current year were $40,322 and employer matching contributions were
$36,459. Any forfeitures under 401(a) plan revert back to the City of Clay general fund.

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt activity for the year ended September 30, 2025, was as follows:

Balance Balance
Sept. 30,2024 Increases Repayments Sept. 30,2025

General Obligation Warrant Series 2006A.
Interest rate is 3.67%, matures
November 20, 2032 $ 2,496,667 $ - $ 261,667 § 2235000

General Obligation Warrant Series 2012A
Interest rate is 3.90%, matures

March 1, 2029. 503,912 - 54,884 449,028
Total Long-Term Debt 3,000,579 $ - $ 316,551 2,684,028
Amounts due within one year 316,551 330,357
Long-term maturities $ 2,684,028 $ 2353671

All the above debt is direct placement in nature and contains provisions for immediate payment in the
event of default.

-4 -



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

Annual requirements to retire general long-term debt as of September 30, 2025, for the next five years
and in five-year increments thereafter are shown below.

Years Ended
September 30, Principal Interest Total
2026 $ 330357 $ 97,029 $ 427,386
2027 343,206 84,682 427,888
2028 358,850 86,801 445,651
2029 372,293 63,378 435,671
2030 389,162 44,465 433,627
2031-2034 890,160 46,743 936,903

$2,684,028 § 423098 $ 3,107,126

NOTE 9 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City maintains commercial insurance policies to mitigate the risk of significant losses. Management
believes the amount of insurance maintained to be adequate.

NOTE 10 - CONTRACT FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT

The City is under contract with the Jefferson County, Alabama Sheriff’s Department to provide police
services. During the current year the City paid $356,083 for these services.

NOTE 11 - LEASES IN THE STATEMENTS OF LESSEES
The City leases a property from the Alabama Department of Youth Services. This lease commenced March
2025 and will expire March 2100. The lease provides for minimum monthly lease payments of $1,000 for

the entirety of the lease. An incremental borrowing rate of 3.785% was used to calculate present value of the
remaining portion of this lease for implementation of GASB 87.

Future lease payments are as follows:

2026 $ 12,000

2027 12,000

2028 12,000

2029 12,000

2030 12,000
2031-2035 60,000
2036-2040 60,000
Thereafter 713,000
$ 893,000

_25.-



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

NOTE 11 - LEASES IN THE STATEMENTS OF LESSEES - Continued

Operating Leases:

Future lease payments
Less: discounted cash flows of future lease payments in calculating present value
Present value of future lease payments:

Operating lease right-of-use-assets

Operating lease liability - current portion
Operating lease liability - noncurrent portion
Total operating lease liabilities:

893,000
595,976

297,024

297,024

733
297,263

297,996

The right of use lease asset and lease liability balances decrease over the life of the lease as follows:

ROU Asset ROU Liability

2026 $ 3991 $ 733

2027 3,991 762

2028 3,991 791

2029 3,991 822

2030 3,991 853
2031-2035 19,955 4,785
2036-2040 19,955 5,780
Thereafter 237,159 283,470
$ 297,024 $ 297,996

NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has performed a review of subsequent events through February 10, 2026, which is the date the

financial statements were available to be issued.

- 26 -



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION



CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2025

Variance
Original Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Taxes $3,600,000 $3,600,000 $3276499 $ (323,501)
Licenses and permits 1,160,000 1,160,000 1,084,673 (75,327)
Intergovernmental 900,000 900,000 905,811 5,811
Parks and recreation 105,000 105,000 30,688 (74,312)
Charges for services
Library 20,000 20,000 3,188 (16,812)
Senior citizens 12,500 12,500 10,969 (1,531)
Interest - - 158,181 158,181
Other 75,000 75,000 62,205 (12,795)
Total revenues 5,872,500 5,872,500 5,532,214 (340,286)
Expenditures
Current operations:
Government administration 2,764,914 2,764,914 2,397,150 367,764
Public safety 499,350 499,350 77,617 421,733
Streets and sanitation 687,549 687,549 428,014 259,535
Parks and recreation 300,536 300,536 180,062 120,474
Library 125,516 125,516 124,530 986
Senior citizens 166,185 166,185 111,844 54,341
4,544,050 4,544,050 3,319,217 1,224,833
Capital outlays 460,000 460,000 208,990 251,010
Debt service 410,000 410,000 444,004 (34,004)
Total expenditures 5,414,050 5,414,050 3,972.211 1,441,839

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures 458,450 458,450 1,560,003 1,101,553

Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers out (590,000) (590,000) (588,183) 1,817

(590,000)  (590,000)  (588,183) 1,817

Excess / (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over/ (under) expenditures

and other financing uses $ (131,550) $ (131,550) 971,820 $ 1,103,370
Fund balance, beginning 7,883,240
Fund balance, ending $ 8,855,060

_27 -



Resolution 2026-13

STATE OF ALABAMA
JEFFERSON COUNTY
CITY OF CLAY

A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING REPORT OF COSTS & CREATING DEMO
LIEN ON 5975 SHANE CIRCLE, PINSON, AL, 35126

Whereas, the City Council of the City of Clay, Alabama adopted Ordinance 2005-57 on the 20% day of June, 2005;
and

Whereas, said Ordinance was adopted to provide for the condemnation, demolition and abatement of dangerous
buildings and structures within the City Limits of Clay, Alabama; and

Whereas, the City Council adopted Resolution 2025-56 authorizing the demolition of the property located at 5975
Shane Circle, Pinson, Alabama 35126; and

Whereas, Milam & Co were the only company to place a bid for demolition of the property located at 5975 Shane
Circle, Pinson, Alabama 35126, for the amount of $23, 635.00, and said demolition took place in January 2026
(invoice attached).

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Clay, Alabama declares the
property at 5975 Shane Circle, Pinson, Alabama 35126 was demolished and abated. The City Council authorizes the
City Clerk to file with the Probate Court of Jefferson County a lien for said abatement in the amount of $23,635.00.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED, this the 10t Day of February 2026.

CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
ATTEST:
JANE ANDERTON, MAYOR TOUSHI ARBITELLE, CITYCLERK
AYES: ABSENT:
NAYS: ABSTAIN:

In my capacity as City Clerk of the City of Clay, Alabama, I hereby certify that the above Resolution was duly adopted
by the City Council of the City of Clay, Alabama, at a regular meeting held on the 10t day of February 2026

City Clerk

Page 1 of 1



2748 Alton Road Suite 116, Birmingham, AL 35210 205-833-5691 Email: kgraveman@milamandco.com

To: City of Clay INVOICE NO:
DATE:

Re: Shane Circle House Demo

25020-1

January 13,2026

1MILAM & CO.
2748 ALTON ROAD SUITE 116
BIRMINGHAM, AL 35210

A FINANCE CHARGE OF 1.5% PER MONTH WILL BE APPLIED TO UNPAID BALANCES AFTER 30 DAYS. CUSTOMER AGREES TO PAY

COLLECTION COST, INCLUDING ATTORNEY FEES, IN THE EVENT OF PAST DUE ACCOUNTS.

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS OR COMMENTS CONCERNING THIS INVOICE
PLEASE CONTACT KASONDRA GRAVEMAN AT (205) 833-5691 OR FAX (205) 833-5783

ATTENTION SKLESPERSON _TERMS JOB NUMBER
Hunter Lauren Hulon DUE UPON RECEIPT 25-020
DIVISION DESCRIPTION CONTRACT AMOUNT % TO DATE
House Demo on Shane Cirlce $23,635.00| 100% $23,635.00
$0.00| 0% $0.00
$0.00 0% $0.00
$0.00 0% $0.00
$0.00 0% $0.00
$0.00| 0% $0.00
$0.00 0% $0.00
$0.00 0% $0.00
$0.00| 0% $0.00
' $0.00] 0% $0.00
CONTRACT TOTAL.: $23,635.00| 100% $23,635.00
CHANGE ORDERS
$0.00| 100% $0.00
0% $0.00
0% $0.00
0% $0.00
0% $0.00
0% $0.00
0% $0.00
0% $0.00
0% $0.00
0% $0.00
0% $0.00
0% $0.00
GRAND TOTAL.: $23,635.00| 100% '$23,635.00
PREVIOUS INVOICES:
BALANCE: $0.00
REMIT PAYMENT TO:
TOTAL DUE THIS PERIOD: $23,635.00

(o>



Resolution 2026-14

STATE OF ALABAMA
JEFFERSON COUNTY
CITY OF CLAY

A RESOLUTION CHANGING THE APRIL 28, 2026 REGULAR MEETING
DATE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLAY DUE TO A LACK OF
QUORUM CAUSED BY THE ALABAMA LEAGUE OF MUNICIPALITIES
ANNUAL CONVENTION

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Clay, Alabama, establishes its regular meeting dates by
resolution and custom in accordance with the Code of Alabama 1975; and

WHEREAS, the Alabama League of Municipalities Annual Convention is scheduled during the
same week as the City Council’s regular meeting date of April 28, 2026; and

WHEREAS, multiple members of the City Council will be attending the Alabama League of
Municipalities Annual Convention in their official capacities; and

WHEREAS, due to such attendance, a quorum of the City Council will not be available to conduct
official City business on April 28, 2026; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interest of the City to reschedule the April 28, 2026
meeting to ensure the presence of a quorum and the orderly conduct of municipal business;

NOW THEREFORE, BE RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Clay that:

1. The regular City Council meeting scheduled for Tuesday, April 28, 2026, is hereby canceled due to
the anticipated lack of a quorum resulting from the Alabama League of Municipalities Annual
Convention.

2. The April 28, 2026 meeting is hereby rescheduled to 2026, at 6:30 pm., to be held
at the regular meeting place of the City Council, unless otherwise noticed.

3. The City Clerk is hereby directed to provide proper public notice of the changed meeting date and
time in accordance with applicable law.

4. All other regularly scheduled City Council meetings shall remain unchanged unless otherwise
modified by subsequent action of the City Council.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED, this 10th Day of February 2026

CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA
ATTEST:

JANE ANDERTON, MAYOR TOUSHI ARBITELLE, CITY CLERK

Page 1 of 2



AYES: ABSENT:

NAYS: ABSTAIN:

In my capacity as City Clerk of the City of Clay, Alabama, I hereby certify that the above Resolution was duly adopted
by the City Council of the City of Clay, Alabama, at a regular meeting held on the 10t day of February 2026

City Clerk

Page 2 of 2



Resolution 2026-15

STATE OF ALABAMA
JEFFERSON COUNTY
CITY OF CLAY

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE CITY OF CLAY PARKS &
RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD

Whereas, the City Council of the City of Clay, Alabama, is authorized pursuant to the Code of Alabama 1975,
including Sections 11-47-210 through 11-47-214, to establish advisory boards to assist the municipality in matters
relating to parks and recreational programs; and

Whereas, the City Council finds that the establishment of a Parks and Recreation Advisory Board will promote
organized recreation, improve park planning, and contribute to the general welfare of the residents of the City of Clay;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLAY,
ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS:

1.

2.

Establishment.

There is hereby established the City of Clay Parks and Recreation Advisory Board (“Advisory Board”).
Membership.

The Advisory Board shall consist of five (5) members who are residents of the City of Clay and who have
demonstrated or recognized interest in parks, recreation, or related community activities. Members shall be
appointed by the City Council.

Terms of Office.

Initial appointments shall be made as follows:

o One (1) member for a term of one (1) year;

o One (1) member for a term of two (2) years;

o One (1) member for a term of three (3) years;

o One (1) member for a term of four (4) years; and

o One (1) member for a term of five (5) years.

All terms shall expire on September 30. Upon expiration of the initial staggered terms, all successor
appointments shall be for terms of five (5) years. Vacancies occurring in unexpired terms shall be filled by the
City Council in the same manner as original appointments, and such appointee shall serve the remainder of
the unexpired term.

Officers.

Each January, the Advisory Board shall elect from its membership a chair, vice-chair, secretary, and any other
officers it deems necessary. Officers shall serve at the pleasure of the Advisory Board.

Powers and Duties.

The Advisory Board shall act in an advisory capacity only and shall:

o Develop proposed rules and regulations governing its procedures and the use of applicable parks,
lands, buildings, equipment, and recreational facilities, all of which shall be submitted to the City
Council for approval by resolution.

o Promote recreational programs and activities within the City; and

o Make recommendations to the City Council concerning patks, recreation facilities, and related
programs.

Page 1 of 2



6. Compensation.
Members of the Advisory Board shall serve without compensation.
7. Repealer.
Any prior resolution establishing a Clay Recreation Board is hereby repealed in its entirety to the extent of
any conflict.
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED, this the 10t Day of February 2026.

CITY OF CLAY, ALABAMA

ATTEST:
JANE ANDERTON, MAYOR TOUSHI ARBITELLE, CITY CLERK
AYES: ABSENT:
NAYS: ABSTAIN:

In my capacity as City Clerk of the City of Clay, Alabama, I hereby certify that the above Resolution was duly adopted
by the City Council of the City of Clay, Alabama, at a regular meeting held on the 10t day of February 2026

City Clerk

Page 2 of 2



By-Laws Governing the City of Clay Parks & Recreation Board

Article 1: Membership, Powers, and Duties

A. The Membership, Powers, and Duties of the Clay Parks & Recreation Board (the “Board”)
shall be as ordained by the Clay City Council.

Article 2: City of Clay Parks & Recreation Board — Established, Mission, Membership

A. Pursuant to its authority under Alabama Code Section 11-86-1 et seq., the Clay City Council
hereby establishes the City of Clay Parks & Recreation Board to facilitate its duty to advise,
supervise, and promote city recreation programs.

B. The mission of the City of Clay Parks & Recreation Board is to serve as citizen Board
members to advise the Athletic Director and, where called upon, the Clay City Council on
various matters pertaining to the operation of park facilities and recreation programs within the
City of Clay, to make policy recommendations to the Parks & Recreation Department where
desired, and to carry out duties as may be assigned to them by the Clay City Council.

C. The City of Clay Parks & Recreation Board shall be composed of five (5) members appointed
by the Clay City Council with recommendation by the Board. One Board member shall serve as
a liaison for each subcommittee.

D. Eligibility
1. Members of the City of Clay Parks & Recreation Board shall be local residents.

2. Members will be selected without regard to race, creed, national origin, age, sex, or the
presence of a disability. In consideration of the Americans with Disabilities Act, efforts
should be made to include members with disabilities.

E. Appointments

1. The initial Members of the Board shall be appointed by the City Council as follows:
a. One for a term of one year; one for a term of two years; one for a term of three years;
one for a term of four years; and one for a term of five years.

2. Ifavacancy should occur before the end of any term, the City of Clay Parks &
Recreation Board shall select and nominate a qualified individual to serve the remainder
of that term, subject to City Council approval.

3. Selection Process for Vacant Positions: All Board candidates shall apply by email to the
Chairperson or Director of Parks and Recreation for the vacant Board position on an
application form provided by the City Clerk. At the next regular meeting after the
application submission deadline, applicants shall make a presentation to the Board
followed by a vote to nominate a Board Member to the City Council to fill the vacant
position.

F. Participation



1. TItis expected that all Board Members be present for at least 75% of regularly scheduled
meetings each calendar year. A Board Member who arrives more than fifteen minutes
after the scheduled start of a meeting or is absent for more than fifteen minutes during the
meeting shall be considered “not present” for reporting of official attendance.

G. Vacancies

1. A member’s position shall become vacant when any of the following occur:
a. A member is absent from 25% of the regularly scheduled meetings in a given calendar
year, regardless of whether such absence is excused or unexcused, except as otherwise
provided in these Bylaws. All absences will be duly recorded. Absences from emergency
or specially called meetings will not be recorded against a member in calculating the
percentage of absences. Special exceptions may be made by the Chairperson of the Board
when absences are due to health or time-limited extenuating circumstances.
b. When a member no longer meets the membership requirements.
c. When a member’s term expires.
d. When a member resigns or is removed by the Board.

2. The Chairperson shall, upon receipt of a resignation or when advised of a vacancy, notify
the Board as soon as reasonably possible.

Article 3: Board Officers

A. The Board shall elect the following officers by simple majority vote: Chairperson, Secretary,
Treasurer.

B. Officers shall be elected by the Board at its first meeting and shall serve for one (1) year.
Thereafter, officers shall be elected at the first regularly scheduled meeting of the Board
following the expiration of the term of the previous officers. Board Members may serve
consecutive terms as officers during their term as a Board Member.

C. In the event a vacancy occurs in an officer position, the Board shall elect a successor by
simple majority vote.

D. The Secretary (or Chairperson if the Secretary is unable to perform his or her duties) is

responsible for notifying Board Members of meetings and distributing agendas, minutes, and
relevant information, unless a Director of Parks and Recreation has been employed, in which
case this responsibility shall fall to said Director, who may delegate the task to staff. Minutes
shall be made available to the Clay City Council within 72 hours of the meeting if requested.

Article 4: Board Duties

A. The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings and perform such other duties as determined by
the Board. In the absence of the Chairperson, the Secretary shall perform the duties of the
Chairperson.

B. The Board is responsible for advising, supervising, and promoting the City’s recreational
programs and, in the absence of a Director of Parks and Recreation, shall provide for the general



administration of the City of Clay’s parks and recreational programs. If a Director is employed,
the Director shall be responsible for administration and implementation of Board policies.

C. The Board may designate individuals or groups to act on its behalf and shall require detailed
reports of activities prior to each regular meeting.

D. The Board shall be responsible for the direction, supervision, and promotion of recreation
programs contributing to the general welfare of City of Clay residents. The Board shall have
control over lands, buildings, equipment, and facilities assigned by the Clay City Council and
shall cooperate with local, state, and federal agencies to improve recreational services. Formal
decisions of the Board shall be communicated to the City Council by the Director of Parks and
Recreation.

E. The Board shall mediate complaints made against the Parks and Recreation Department,
additional Board committees, youth sports committees, coaches, or program members under the
authority of the Clay City Council, in accordance with departmental policies and Robert’s Rules
of Order.

F. Board Members are asked to participate an average of five (5) hours per month, including
meetings, events, committee service, liaison roles, and advocacy.

Article 5: Board Meetings

A. Regular meetings shall be held at 6:30 PM on the fourth Monday of each month at City Hall
Chambers or another designated location, in compliance with the Open Meetings Law.

B. Special meetings may be called by the Chairperson or by written request of a majority of the
Board, with notice provided as required by law.

C. A majority of Board Members shall constitute a quorum.

D. Members anticipating absence, late arrival, or early departure should notify the Chairperson
and Secretary.

E. Meetings shall be conducted according to Robert’s Rules of Order.
F. Agendas shall be finalized one week prior to meetings and distributed in advance.
G. All meetings are open to the public.

H. Board Members serving in coaching or similar roles shall recuse themselves from votes
affecting those activities and from any vote involving “Family Members” as defined by Alabama
law.

Article 6: Additional Board Committees and City of Clay Parks & Recreation (Youth
Sports) Committees

A. The Chairperson may appoint additional standing or special committees as authorized by the
Board.



B. The City of Clay Parks & Recreation Board may establish committees for individual
recreational activities. One Board Member shall serve as liaison for each committee.

C. The mission of these committees is to advise the Board, Director of Parks and Recreation, and
Clay City Council on recreation matters within the City of Clay.

D. Each committee shall submit an annual report to the Board.
E. Eligibility

1. Committee members shall be local residents, participants, or parents/grandparents of
participants in City of Clay programs.

2. Members shall be selected without discrimination, with consideration given to
accessibility and inclusion.

Article 7: Amendments

A. Amendments must be proposed in writing at one meeting and acted upon at the next regular
meeting.

B. An annual review of these By-Laws shall be conducted by the Board Bylaws Committee
following officer elections.

Created:
Adopted by Board:

Printed Name:
As:

Printed Name:
As:

Printed Name:
As:

Printed Name:
As:

Printed Name:
As:

(CONSTITUTING ALL OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE
CITY OF CLAY PARKS & RECREATION BOARD)



	2026-01-27a Minutes PC.pdf
	2026-01-27b Minutes CC.pdf
	2026-02-10a Agenda - pre-council.pdf
	2026-02-10b CC Agenda.pdf
	Res 2026-10 De-Annexation 2565 Sweeney Hollow Rd.pdf
	Res 2026-11 WITHDRAWN Budget Adjustment to General Fund for Championship rings.pdf
	Res 2026-12 Acceptance of 2024-2025 City Audit.pdf
	Res 2026-12a City of Clay Alabama 9.30.2025 Audited Financial Statements.pdf
	Res 2026-13 Demo Lien 5975 Shane Circle.pdf
	Res 2026-13a Milam & Co Invoice 25020-1 Demo 5975 Shane Cir.pdf
	Res 2026-14 Change April 28, 2026 meeting date.pdf
	Res 2026-15 Park & Recreation Advisory Board and bylaws.pdf
	Res 2026-15a Clay Parks & Rec Bylaws.pdf



